

Student Accessibility Handbook

Frank E. O'Brien, Jr., Student Support Center

Mercy Hall

Jon Coller-Takahashi

Director of Student Support and Opportunity Programs

Assistant Dean of Students

jcoller@mariacollege.edu

(518) 861-2502

Fax: (518) 730-9628

Table of Contents

Mission Statement & Description
Overview of Laws
Disability Law and Academic Accommodations for Accessibility
Reasonable Academic Accommodations
Registering with Accessibility Services
Criteria for Medical Documentation6
Generally Accepted Documentation8
Provisional Accommodations8
Limitations to Accommodations9
Types of Accommodations
Assistive Technology9
Support Animals
Steps for Scheduling Tests
Accommodations Testing Policies
Appeals Regarding Accommodations
ACCES-VR13
Transition from High School to College14
Student Responsibility Agreement

Mission Statement

The Accessibility Services Program promotes the development of an inclusive and welcoming environment by ensuring that all qualified students with disabilities are given equal access to educational resources. Recognizing that each individual has unique needs, the staff of the Accessibilities Services Program works to provide a student-centered approach to reasonable accommodations that will lead to not only academic success, but also to personal empowerment and professional advancement.

Description

The Accessibility Office supports the mission of Maria College by providing assistance to students with disabilities in a supportive campus environment. The Accessibility Services Program provides services that help students to overcome potential barriors to education and to provide equal access to all educational programs on campus. Through partnership with the students, faculty, and staff members the Accessibility Office works to promote a student's independence, self-advocacy, and personal growth. Accessibility Services is an entity within the Department of Student Affairs, located in Mercy Hall's Frank E. O'Brien Jr., Student Support Center. Administrative oversight for Accessibility Services falls under the purview of the Associate Vice President for Student Affairs.

Overview of Laws

Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Prohibits federal agencies and their grantees and contractors from discriminating against people based on disability in employment, programs and activities.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (ADA/504)

A federal statute that guarantees the rights of disabled people to equal opportunity in all programs and activities that receive federal financial assistance. It prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals solely on the basis of disability. Section 504 regulations apply to state education agencies, elementary and secondary school systems, colleges and universities, libraries, vocational schools and state vocational rehabilitation agencies.

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

Signed into law to protect individuals with disabilities against discrimination in employment; in programs operated by city, county, and state entities; public and private transportation, public accommodations and telecommunication services.

In enacting the ADAAA, Congress made it easier for an individual seeking protection under the ADA to establish that he or she has a disability within the meaning of the statute. Congress overturned several Supreme Court decisions that Congress believed had interpreted the definition of "disability" too narrowly, resulting in a denial of protection for many individuals with impairments such as cancer, diabetes, and epilepsy. The ADAAA states that the definition of disability should be interpreted in favor of broad coverage of individuals.

Section 508

Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, requires that when colleges develop, procure, maintain, or use electronic and information technology, individuals with disabilities have access to and use of information and data that is comparable to the access and use by

individuals without disabilities.

Title II

Title II requires that colleges receiving government funding give people with disabilities an equal opportunity to benefit from all of their programs, services, and activities

Disability Law and Academic Accommodations for Accessibility

Higher education institutions adhere to different disability laws than high schools. At the college level, accommodations are only provided when the student has self-identified as having a functional impairment that substantially limits major life functioning. Students attending high school are protected by IDEA (Individuals with Disabilities Education Act), which allows schools to make curricular changes for students with disabilities. At the college level, all students with disabilities must be "otherwise qualified"; therefore, they are required to meet the academic and technical skills for their respective program. It is important that all students understand that Maria College will not modify exams or curriculum, and standards for grading are determined by the instructor. The Americans with Disabilities Act and Amendments governs the decisions pertaining to accommodations for disabilities at Maria College.

For more information on the transition process from high school to college, please refer to the document, Transition from High School Information, located at the end of this handbook.

Reasonable Academic Accommodations

Disabilities vary on how they impact a person's major life functions. Due to the varying differences in disabilities, the program can only provide academic accommodations based on the history of the disability, reported limitations, and/or respective documentation from a qualified professional. There must always be a correlation between the impact of the disability and the requested accommodation. Accommodations are adjustments, changes or alterations to a program, service, activity or policy, in order to permit equal access.

Appropriate and reasonable accommodations should insure that academic evaluations measure student achievement rather than unnecessarily reflecting the impact of the disability. They are not designed to give students with disabilities unfair advantages over other students. Maria College is obligated to make reasonable accommodation only to the known limitations of an otherwise qualified disabled student.

The language used in the ADA focuses on an accommodation being reasonable as long as it does not pose an "undue hardship" when compared to the entity's total operating budget, size of facility, number of employees, etc. Court decisions and agency rulings have held that requests of students need not be provided and are not reasonable under the following circumstances:

- the student is not qualified when compared to other applicants/participants in a program;
- the accommodation would result in a fundamental alteration of the program or a dilution of standards:
- the institution is being asked to address a personal need (like attendant care);
- the accommodation would impose an undue financial or administrative burden on the organization when compared with its total operating budget; or
- the accommodation poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others.

<u>Please note</u>: personal services such as private tutoring, personal aides, or assistance in bathing, grooming, food preparation, housekeeping, and assistance ambulating are not deemed reasonable accommodations. Additionally, individually prescribed devices, such as hearing aids, glasses, braces, wheelchairs, and other mobility devices are to be purchased by the student.

Registering with Accessibility Services

New Students

Students who wish to receive accommodations at Maria College must register with the Accessibility Services Office. A student may access the <u>Registration Form</u> through the <u>Accessibility Services Webpage</u>¹. Following submission of the Registration Form, the student will be contact by the Coordinator of Accessibility Services to schedule an In-Take Interview. This interview will take approximately 30 minutes, during which:

- The Coordinator of Accessibility Services will review all medical documentation provide by the student to ensure it meets ADA standards and provide an overview of Accessibility Services.
- 2. The student will be given the opportunity to discuss their specific needs in detail and ask any questions related to registration.

Once students have completed the registration process, the Coordinator of Accessibility Services will generate Accommodation Agreements to be reviewed and signed by the Coordinator and the student.² The student will then be presented with the necessary number of hardcopies for distribution to current faculty. (The Coordinator will email .pdf copies to faculty if the student is enrolled in online classes.) It is the student's responsibility to submit his/her Accommodation Agreement to all instructors conducting face-to-face classes³. **No accommodations can be provided until this process has been completed it its entirety.**

If you have questions regarding this process, you may request an appointment by emailing accessibilityservices@maraicollege.edu.

¹ Please see the Accessibility Services webpage as well for access to helpful links, forms and other documentation.

² Accommodations Agreements will generally be available for pick-up within three (3) business days of the completion of the In-Take Interview.

³ Student enrolled in the ADN or PNC programs will be provided one hardcopy for his/her personal records. The Coordinator will then email a signed .pdf version to the current chair of the Nursing Program and his/her administrative assistant. The student does not need to present hardcopies during this process.

Returning Students and Accommodation Adjustments

Students must obtain an updated Accommodation Agreement each semester by completing a Registration Request online. A request should be made at least one week prior to the start of the academic semester. Once received, the Coordinator of Accessibility Services will contact the student via email to arrange a time to meet, review and sign off on revised agreements.⁴ Maria College faculty are not required to provide a student with accommodations unless the student has provided an appropriately dated accommodation letter.

If you would like to make changes to your letter, please schedule an appointment with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services by emailing accessibilityservices@mariacollege.edu.

Criteria for Appropriate Medical Documentation

Students with mobility, visual and hearing disabilities; chronic medical conditions; psychiatric disabilities; cognitive disabilities, and substance abuse/recovery must provide documentation, which adheres to the criteria indicated below:

1. The credentials of the evaluator/s

The best quality documentation is provided by a licensed or otherwise properly credentialed professional who has undergone appropriate and comprehensive training, has relevant experience, and has no personal relationship with the individual being evaluated. An appropriate match between the credentials of the individual making the diagnosis and the condition being reported is expected (e.g., an orthopedic limitation might be documented by a physician, but not a licensed psychologist).

2. A statement identifying the disability

Acceptable documentation includes a clear diagnostic statement that describes what the condition is and how it was diagnosed. While diagnostic codes from the Diagnostic Statistical Manual of the American Psychiatric Association (DSM) or the International Classification of Functioning, Disability and Health (ICF) of the World Health Organization are helpful in providing this information, a clinical description will also convey the necessary information.

3. A description of the diagnostic methodology used

Quality documentation includes a description of the diagnostic criteria, evaluation methods, procedures, tests and dates of administration, as well as a clinical narrative, observation, and specific results. Where appropriate to the nature of the disability, having both summary data and specific test scores (with the norming population identified) within the report is recommended. Diagnostic methods that are congruent with the particular disability and current professional practices in the field are recommended. Methods may include formal instruments, medical examinations, structured interview protocols, performance observations and unstructured interviews. If results from informal, non-standardized or less common methods of evaluation are reported, an explanation of their role and significance in the diagnostic process will strengthen their value in providing useful information.

⁴ Accommodations Agreements will generally be available for pick-up within three (3) business days of the submission of the Registration Request.

4. A description of the current functional limitations

Information on how the condition(s) currently impacts the individual provides useful information for both establishing a disability and identifying possible accommodations. A combination of the results of formal evaluation procedures, clinical narrative, and the individual's self-report is the most comprehensive approach to fully documenting impact. The best quality documentation is thorough enough to demonstrate whether and how a major life activity is substantially limited by providing a clear sense of the severity, frequency and pervasiveness of the condition(s). While relatively recent documentation is recommended in most circumstances, common sense and discretion in accepting older documentation of conditions that are permanent or non-varying is recommended. Likewise, changing conditions and/or changes in how the condition impacts the individual brought on by growth and development may warrant more frequent updates in order to provide an accurate picture. It is important to remember that documentation is not time-bound; the need for recent documentation depends on the facts and circumstances of the individual's condition. In most cases, documentation should be current within the past 3-5 years; however some documentation that is older may also be relevant. In some cases, previous or more recent documentation may be requested to draw connections between the student's condition and the accommodation being requested.

5. A description of the expected progression or stability of the disability

It is helpful when documentation provides information on expected changes in the functional impact of the disability over time and context. Information on the cyclical or episodic nature of the disability and known or suspected environmental triggers to episodes provides opportunities to anticipate and plan for varying functional impacts. If the condition is not stable, information on interventions for exacerbations (including the individual's own strategies) and recommended timelines for re-evaluation are most helpful.

6. A description of current and past accommodations, services and/or medications

The most comprehensive documentation will include a description of both current and past medications, auxiliary aids, assistive devices, support services, and accommodations, including their effectiveness in ameliorating functional impacts of the disability. A discussion of any significant side effects from current medications or services that may impact physical, perceptual, behavioral or cognitive performance is helpful when included in the report. While accommodations provided in another setting are not binding on the current institution, they may provide insight in making current decisions.

7. Recommendations for accommodations, adaptive devices, assistive services, compensatory strategies, and/or collateral support services

Recommendations from professionals with a history of working with the student provide valuable information for review and the planning process. It is most helpful when recommended accommodations and strategies are logically related to functional limitations; if connections are not obvious, a clear explanation of their relationship can be useful in decision making. While the College has no obligation to provide or adopt recommendations that would fundamentally modify the course or degree requirements. Those accommodation recommendations that are congruent with the programs, services, and benefits offered by the

College may be appropriate.

Generally Accepted Documentation

As indicated above, all students who register with Accessibility Services at Maria College are required to meet individually with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services to review the student's medical documentation and construct an individualized Accommodation Agreement based on the student's diagnosis. Students have a responsibility to provide appropriate and timely disability-related documentation to the Coordinator in order for accommodation plans to be developed. This documentation can be provided by fax at (518)730-9628 or in person.

Generally accepted forms of documentation include, but are not limited to:

- Individualized Education Plans (IEP)
- 504 Plans
- Summary of Performance (SOP)
- Aptitude Tests (The Wechsler Adult Intelligence Scale-Third Edition (WAIS-III), The Woodcock- Johnson Psychoeducational Battery III (W-J-III): Tests of Cognitive Ability or the Stanford- Binet Intelligence Scale: Fifth Edition.)
- Academic Achievement Tests (Assessment of academic ability in the areas of reading, writing and math. Suggested instruments include: Woodcock-Johnson Psychoeducational Battery III: Tests of Achievement (W- J-III); Wechsler Individual Achievement Test (WIAT-II); Stanford Test of Academic Skills (TASK); or a combination of tests in specific skill areas such as the Test of Written Language-IV (TOWL-IV); the Woodcock Reading Mastery Tests-Revised; the Nelson Denny Reading Test; the Stanford Diagnostic Reading Test; or the Stanford Diagnostic Mathematics Test.)
- Psychosocial Evaluations
- Maria College Medical Documentation Form (See Helpful Information on the <u>Accessibility Services webpage</u>.)

Provisional Accommodations

Provisional accommodations (extending for a period of 30 days) can be provided to students under the following circumstances with the understanding that medical documentation adhering to the criteria listed above is to be submitted. Failure to submit the appropriate documentation with in the 30-day period will result in an immediate revocation of all accommodations:

- 1. Medical documentation is provided and indicates the accommodations to be provided, but does not meet all seven criteria as stated above.
- 2. Student provides an Accommodation Agreement from a previous institution.

Under no circumstances will students be provided accommodations or modifications without first presenting some form of medical documentation to affirm their diagnosis⁵.

⁵ Unless the disability is visibly evidenced, i.e. the student is in a wheel chair.

Limitations to Accommodations

Lab Practicals

No accommodation will be provided if the accommodation would impose an undue financial or administrative burden on the organization when compared with its total operating budget. As a result, lab practicals for Anatomy & Physiology and Microbiology cannot be changed or modified in any way because to do so would place undue burden on faculty and staff operating with limited resources.

Technical Skills Assessments

No accommodation will be provided if the accommodation would result in a fundamental alteration of the program or a dilution of standards or would impose an undue financial or administrative burden on the organization when compared with its total operating budget. Like all students, students receiving disability services will have to be able to meet the essential requirements of the program/ course(s) that they are enrolled in. As a result, Dosage Exams, i.e. Safe Medicate, and Competency Exams in Nursing and Occupational Therapy cannot be changed or modified in any way because to do so would irrevocably change the nature of the assessment. These assessments represent technical skills assessments and are designed to evaluate the student's skill level regarding a particular task in a particular environment and under specific circumstances to reflect a real-world environment. Thus, they must be administered uniformly to each student without alteration.

Typical Accommodations

Currently, the following accommodations are supported and/or provided by Maria College on a routine basis⁶:

- Extended Testing Time (Time and ½ or Double Time)
- Distraction-Reduced Testing Environment (Callaghan Room)
- Copy of Professors Notes (when applicable)
- Earplugs
- Preferential Seating in classroom and lab settings
- Electronic copies of textbooks

If other accommodations are required, the Coordinator of Accessibility Services will work with faculty and staff (within the bounds of reasonability) to address the student's needs.

Assistive Technology

Text-to-Speech Software: Students registered with Accessibility Services presenting a diagnosed need for text-to-speech software support, will be provided access to Read & Write Gold. This software is available on all campus computers and may be used during tests so long

⁶ This should not be treated as an exhaustive list.

as supporting documentation is provided. All students electing to use this software during examinations must first schedule a training session with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services

Audio Recorders and LiveScribe Pens: Accessibility Services at Maria College currently does not provide students with this form of assistive technology. However, they can be used during class and lab so long as: 1. the student presents supporting documentation for such a device, and 2. the faculty member agrees to have class or lab recorded. No recording should take place without these two criteria being met. Students should speak with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services if they run into any difficulties in utilizing this accommodation.

Noise Cancelling Headphones: While Accessibility Services does not provide these to students, use of personally owned headphones may be used if supporting documentation is provided.

E-Texts: Student requiring electronic versions of textbooks and other required class materials will need to first provide the Coordinator of Accessibility Services with proof of purchase as well as the publication information of all requested texts. (This should be done as soon as possible as it can take up to 2-3 weeks for the order to be fulfilled.) Once received, the Coordinator will then request electronic copies through Bookshare or the AccessText Network.

Support Animals

Although Maria College is a non-residential institution we seek to be inclusive of all reasonable accommodations. Therefore, Maria College has developed a comprehensive policy to review the need for animals on campus using a case by case approach and according to the understanding of the following information from the Federal Government, "...under the Fair Housing Act (FHAct), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) with respect to animals that provide assistance to individuals with disabilities. The Department of Justice's (DOT) amendments to its regulations for Titles II and III of the ADA limit the definition of 'service animal' under the ADA to include only dogs, and further define 'service animal' to exclude emotional support animals."

Service Animals

"Service Animal" is defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) as dogs that are individually trained to do work or perform tasks for people with disabilities. Examples of such work or tasks include guiding people who are blind, alerting people who are deaf, pulling a wheelchair, alerting and protecting a person who is having a seizure, reminding a person with mental illness to take prescribed medications, calming a person with Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) during an anxiety attack, or performing other duties. Service Animals are working animals, not pets. A service animal is welcomed and will be documented with the campus Coordinator of Accessibility Services at the time of intake for all students receiving services and accommodations through the Student Support Center. Students must follow these procedures before accommodations can be offered.

• The student must contact the Coordinator of Accessibility Services to notify them of the need for a Service Animal.

⁷ https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/SERVANIMALS_NTCFHEO2013-01.PDF

- The student must provide the Coordinator with documentation of disability and need in order for the Coordinator to determine if a service animal is an appropriate accommodation. The student will also be asked to provide certification of training for the service animal.
- The student must meet with the professor or administrative personnel to inform them of their accommodations, preferably at the beginning of the semester as well as inform them of the presence of the service animal.
- A Maria College representative may ask a student accompanied by an animal presenting on campus whether that animal has been registered with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services, and if not, the student may be directed to do so. Staff will not inquire regarding the status of the individual and or 'handlers' disability status or certification status of the animal.

Emotional Support Animals (ESA)

An Emotional Support Animal (ESA) is an animal whose sole function is to provide emotional support, comfort therapy, or therapeutic benefits to a student with a documented disability. ESA's are not trained to assist an individual with disabilities in an activity of daily living and are, therefore, not considered a Service Animal under the ADA (ADAAA) and do not qualify for the same legal protections. An ESA must belong to an owner who has been approved for an accommodation by the Coordinator of Accessibility Services. A person qualifies for a reasonable accommodation on a case by case basis if the following conditions are met.

- The person has established with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services that he or she has a documented disability that requires the assistance of an ESA.
- There must be a relationship between the disability and the assistance the ESA provides to its owner.

Students in need of an ESA on campus will need to provide the same procedure for registering a service animal above.

Grounds for Removing an Animal

Any Maria College representative may ask that the student/handler remove an animal from campus for the following reasons:

- Out of control animal: A service animal that has been registered with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services may be asked to leave a Maria College facility, campus grounds, or program if the animal's behavior is out of control and the handler does not take effective action to control it. If the improper animal behavior happens repeatedly, the handler may be prohibited from bringing the animal into any Maria College space until the handler can demonstrate to the Coordinator that he/she has taken significant steps to mitigate the behavior.
- *Non-housebroken animal:* A handler may be directed to remove an animal that isn't housebroken.
- *Direct threat:* A handler may be directed to remove an animal that Maria College staff determines to be a substantial and direct threat to the health (e.g., allergies, emotional distress, etc.) and safety of individuals. This may occur as a result of a very ill animal, a

- substantial lack of cleanliness of the animal, or the presence of an animal in sensitive areas, such as certain campus areas and laboratories, mechanical, or industrial areas.
- *Unregistered animals:* Any animal who is not registered with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services can be removed from campus until the time that the animal has been properly registered for on campus use.

Steps for Scheduling Tests

All students qualifying for extended test time and/or a distraction-reduced environment will need to register his or her exam **at least three** (3) **days in advance** of the scheduled examination date. All tests will be taken in the Callaghan Room, Student Support Center, unless extenuating circumstances render the room inaccessible. Students should adhere to the following procedure when scheduling accommodations testing:

- 1. Students should complete a <u>Testing Accommodations Request</u> via the Accessibility Services webpage. (See <u>www.mariacollege.edu</u> -> Student Support -> Accessibility Services -> Schedule for Testing.)
- 2. After submitting a Testing Accommodations Request, the student should notify the course instructor to email the testing materials to the Coordinator of Accessibility Services at accessibilityservices@mariacollege.edu.
- 3. Upon receipt of the Testing Accommodations Request and exam materials, the Coordinator will notify the student of their test day and time via email. (The test will be issued on the same day as the rest of the class. Alterations to the test date must first be approved, in writing, by the course instructor.)
- 4. The student should arrive to the Callaghan Room approximately 5-10 minutes in advance of the scheduled testing time. They will be required to place all personal belongings (including cell phones, smart watches, bags, and jackets) in the demarcated storage areas while testing.

Accommodations Testing Policies

Proctoring & Video Monitoring: Tests taken in the Callaghan will be surveilled using CCTV cameras. A proctor will also be present to maintain the academic integrity of the testing space. Should a proctor suspect that a student is cheating on an examination, they will notify the Coordinator of Accessibility Services immediately. The Coordinator will then speak with the student regarding the claims made by the proctor and review footage of the event. Any allegations of cheating supported by evidence will result in the submission of a Student Misconduct Report and the instructor will be notified of the event.

Cell Phones & Smart Devices: All cell phones and smart devise must be silenced and surrendered prior to beginning any examination in the Callaghan Room. They may be stored in the personal storage spaces provided.

Lateness/Absence/Rescheduling: Lateness will be accommodated only if a proctor can remain to monitor the student. If this is not possible, the student will only be allowed the time that remains. Students who are absent from a scheduled exam will need to speak with the course instructor prior to the test being rescheduled. Rescheduling a test will only occur if the Coordinator receives explicit, written permission from the course instructor.

ACCES-VR

The Accessibility Services office collaborates with Adult Career and Continuing Education Services-Vocational Rehabilitation (ACCES-VR) to ensure student are provided the resources they need to succeed. This program is utilized by many of our students for financial and technological support which assist them in their college level programs on campus. Our students have benefitted from some of the following services provided by ACCES-VR:

- Vocational Counseling and Guidance
- Assessments and Evaluations
- Rehabilitation Technology
- Special Transportation
- Tuition Assistance (including fees and textbooks)
- Tutor, Reader and Note Taker services

If you would like to know more about this program, please call them directly (518-474-3852) or visit their website at www.acces.nysed.gov/vr.

All students currently receiving assistance through ACCES-VR should notify the Coordinator of Accessibility Services to ensure effective coordination of resources and supports.

Appeals Regarding Accommodations

If, at any time, a student perceives that his or her accommodations are not being fully recognized by faculty or staff, he or she should speak with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services. The Coordinator will assist the student in addressing their needs.

Transition from High School to College

Maria College follows the guidelines of the Americans with Disabilities Act. Once enrolled in college, students move from the protection of Public Law 94-142 (I.D.E.A.) to protection under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. The following chart highlights the differences.

Way gayoo	COLLEGE		
HIGH SCHOOL	COLLEGE		
Applicable Laws: • Individuals with Disabilities Educational Act (IDEA)	 Applicable Laws: Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 		
• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973	Laws that apply to colleges and universities, sometimes referred		
These laws are sometimes referred to as "success laws" because they require high schools to provide all possible accommodations to help ensure a student's success. Supports may include modifications to curriculum, modifications to homework, the assignment of personal classroom aides, and shorter tests.	to as "access laws," require institutions to make accommodations ensuring that students with disabilities have full access to programs and activities. A student with a disability, however, must be "otherwise qualified" to undertake a given course or program, meeting the same academic and skills- based requirements that apply to students without		
	disabilities. For example, a school may offer testing accommodations by way of extended time or in an		
Required Documentation: • Individual Education Plan (IEP) • 504 Plan • School provides evaluation at no cost to the student. • School conducts evaluations at prescribed intervals.	 Required Documentation: Varies according to the disability. I.E.P. and 504 plans alone are not sufficient. Documentation must include a written report describing the impairment, a diagnosis, and all test results and/or medical information used to arrive at the diagnosis. If the documentation is incomplete or not current, the student is responsible for obtaining and submitting additional documentation. 		
 Student Role: Student is identified and supported by parents/teachers. Primary responsibility for accommodations belongs to the school. 	 Student Role: Student must self-identify to the Office of Disability Services (ODS). Students wishing to request accommodations must follow ODS policies and procedures. 		
Parental Role: • Parents have access to student records and participate in the accommodation process. • Parents advocate for students.	Parental Role: • It is the student's responsibility, not the parent's responsibility, to request and arrange his or her own accommodations. Students advocate for themselves, with support of the ODS as		
 Teachers: Teachers may modify curriculum and/or alter pace of assignments. Teachers use a multi-sensory approach. Weekly quizzes, midterms, finals, and frequent graded assignments provide students with an on-going indication of their academic progress. Teachers arrange regular parent/teacher/student conferences to report on and discuss student's progress. Attendance is taken and reported but a disability may potentially excuse some absences. 	 Instructors: Instructors are not required to modify the fundamental nature of program. Instructors tend to rely on lecture and may or may not use a multi-sensory approach. Grades are generally based on fewer tests and assignments, and students must independently monitor their learning in the course on a frequent and regular basis. Students are responsible for requesting and arranging individual conferences with their instructors. Responsibility for class attendance rests with the individual student, and since regular and punctual class attendance is expected of all students, the student must accept the consequences of failure to attend class/classes. 		
Grades:Grades may be modified based on curriculum accommodations.	Grades:Grades reflect the quality of work submitted.		

Accessibility Services Student Responsibility Agreement

Every student receiving accommodations agrees to the following.

- 1. It is expected that every student review the Maria College Student Handbook and comply with all College academic policies, procedures and the student code of conduct contained therein. The Student Handbook is available online at www.mariacollege.edu/student-support.
- 2. It is expected that every student regularly monitors their Maria College student email for correspondence and important information from the Accessibility Services Office.
- 3. It is expected that every student abide by testing room protocol which can be found in the Student Accessibility Services Handbook. (See www.mariacollege.edu/student-support/academic-support/accessibility-services)
- 4. *Request for accommodations* must be made at the beginning of each semester via the Accessibility Services webpage.
- 5. *First Time Student Registration* (an initial intake appointment with the Coordinator of Accessibility Services is required. Once the student registers online, he or she will be contacted by email to make that appointment.)
- 6. Returning Student Registration (no appointment necessary if all documentation is up to date. Students will receive your Accessibility Agreement by email.)
- 7. Clinical Skills Assessments cannot be modified nor can students receive accommodations for these exams since such modifications and/or accommodations would result in a fundamental alteration of the assessment. This includes, but is not limited to, dosage (SafeMedicate) and competency exams in the Nursing and Occupational Therapy Programs.
- 8. It is expected that each student receiving their accommodation agreement by email will forward a copy of this accommodation agreement to all their professors at the beginning of each semester.
- 9. It is expected that students will schedule their exam/test *at least three days* in advance according to their faculty approved exam dates and location. Exams can be schedule through the Accessibility Services webpage.
- 10. It is expected that each student will keep the Coordinator of Accessibility Services informed of any changes to your disability or personal information.
- 11. It is expected that all documents related to your disability are provided to the Coordiantor of Accessibility Serives before services begin. Information can be emailed to accessibilityservices@mariacollege.edu or faxed to 518-730-9628.
- 12. Each student is responsible to provide the Assistant Dean of Students with the contact information of her or his case manager or counselor such as ACCES-VR and provide a signed consent to share information as needed.
- 13. If students are approved for alternate format of textbooks, students should request the books as soon as they register for classes. Getting textbooks in alternate format can take a long time.

Student Signature		_ Date	
Copy of Student Responsibilities given:	□ Yes □ No	Date	